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Proceeding to Assess Class II Civil Penalty Under 
Clean Water Act Section 311 for spec Violations 

LEGAL AUTHORITY 

1. This First Amended Complaint is filed in accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 22. 14(c) which 

allows amendment of the Complaint as a matter of rig hi prior to the filing of the Answer. The 

initial Administrative Complaint (Initial Complaint) in this matter was filed on September 27, 

20 11 , against Asher Associates, LLC., under the authority vested in the Administrator of the U.S. 

Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) by Section 3 I I (b)(6)(B)(ii) of the Clean Water Act 

(Act), 33 U.S.C. § 132 I (b)(6)(B)(ii), as amended by the Oil Pollution Act of I 990. The Answer 

in this matter has not been filed. Based upon new infonnation, this First Amended Complaint 

adds Petra Energy. Inc. as a Respondent. revises the total storage capacity amounts in paragraph 

8, clarifies thc tributaries in paragraph 10, includes evidence of the existence of an spec plan at 

the time of the inspection in paragraph 20, provides a current list of deficiencies in Attachment B 

referenced in paragraph 3D, and rcnects consideration of ncw infonnation in paragraphs 38-40 

that discuss penalty factors. 



2. Pursuant to Section 31 I (b)(6)(8)(i i) of the Act, and in accordance wi th the 

"Consol idated Rules of Practice Goveming the Administrative Assessment ofCivii Penalties, 

Issuance of Compliance or Corrective Action Orders, and the Revocation, Termination or 

Suspension of Permits," codified at 40 C.F .R. Part 22 (part 22), Complainant hereby provides 

notice of this First Amended Complaint and il s proposal that the Administrator assess a civil 

penalty against Petra Energy, Inc. and Asher Associates, LLC (Respondents) for failing to 

comply with Spill Prevention Control and Counlcmlcasure regulations sct forth at 40 C. f.R. Part 

112 under the authority of Section 311 0) and other provisions of the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. 

§ 132 1 U) and §§ 125 I el seq. (SPCC regu lations), and notice of Responden ts' opportunity to file 

an Answer to this Complaint and to request a hearing on the proposed penalty assessment. 

ALl,EGA TlONS 

3. Section 311G)( 1)(C) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 132 1G)(1)(C), provides that the Pres ident 

shall issue regulations "establishing procedures, methods, and equipment and other requirements 

for equipment to prevent discharges of oi l ... from onshore . .. facilit~es, and to contain such 

discharges . ... " 

4. Initially by Executive Order 11 548 (July 20, 1970),35 Fed. Reg. 11 677 (July 22, 

1970), and most recent ly by Section 2(b)(1) of Executive Order 12777 (October 18, 1991), 56 

Fed. Reg. 54757 (October 22, 1991), the Pres ident delegated to EPA his Section 311 0)( I )(C) 

authority to issue the regulations referenced in the preceding Paragraph for non-transponation

related onshore facilities. 

5. EPA subsequent ly promulgated the spec regulations pursuant to these delegated 

statutory authorities, and pursuant 10 its authorities under the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1251 
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el seq ., which established certain procedures, methods and requirements upon each owner and 

operator of a non-transportation-related onshore facility, if such facility, due to its location, couJd 

reasonably be expected to discharge oil into or upon the navigable waters of the United States 

and their adjoining shorelines in such quantity as EPA has determined in 40 C. F.R. § 110.3 may 

be harmfu l to the public health or we lfare or the environment of the United States ("harmful 

quantity"). 

6. In promulgating 40 C.F.R. § 110.3 , which implements Section 31 I (b)(4) of the Act, 33 

U.S.C. § 132 1 (b)( 4), EPA has determined that di scharges of harmful quantities include oil 

di scharges that cause either (1) a violat ion of applicab le water quality standards; or (2) a film , 

sheen upon, or discoloration of the surface of the water or adjoining shorelines or (3) a sludge or 

emulsion to be deposited beneath the surface of the water or upon adjoining shorelines. 

7. Respondents are persons within the meaning of Sections 311 (a)(7) and 502(5) of the 

Act, 33 U.S .C. §§ 132 1(a)(7) and 1362(5), and 40 C.F.R. § 11 2.2 . 

8. Respondents are the owner(s) andlor operator(s) within the meaning of Section 

311(a)(6) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 132 I (a)(6), and 40 C.F.R. § 11 2.2 of the following onshore oil 

production facilities located in Niobrara County, Wyoming: 

a. Federal 22-21 Facility- Oil storage capacityl ofapproximatelyl03 ,152 gallons located 
at Latitude: 43.16963, Longitude:-! 04.43256, within 1,075 feet of an intermittent, 
unnamed stream, which flows into Buck Creek, a tributary to Lance Creek before 
entering the Cheyenne River, which flows to the Missouri River; 

b. 32-20 Injection Facility- Oil storage capacity ofapproximatcly 6,720 gallons located 
at Latitude: 43.17186, Longitude:- l 04.44581, within 280 feet of an intennittelll, 
unnamed stream, which Haws into Peddy Draw, a tributary to Buck Creek, which flows 
into Lance Creek before entering the Cheyenne River, which flows to Missouri River; 

10il storage capacity ror each of the faciliti es is based on documents provided to EPA by Respondents 
subsequent to the issuance of the original Complaint. 
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c. Bright Facility (alk/a JA-6 41-8 facility)- Oil storage capacity ofapproximately 
192,990 gallons located at Latitude: 43.20201, Longitude:-I04.4412, within 300 feet of 
an intermittent, unnamed stream, which flows into Buck Creek, a tributary to Lance 
Creek before entering the Cheyenne River, which flows to the Missouri River; and 

d. Beaver Hole Facility (alkJa Federal 12-21 fac ility)- Oil storage capacity of 63,630 
gallons located at Latitude: 43.17128, Longitude:-104.43585, within 950 feet of an 
intermittent, unnamed stream, which flows into Buck Creek, a tributary to Lance Creek 
before entering the Cheyenne River, which flows to the Missouri River. 

9. The aggregate above-ground oil storage capac ity at each of the facilities referenced in 

Paragraph 8, above, is greater than 1,320 gallons of oil in containers each with a shell capacity of 

at least 55 gallons. 

10. Buck Creek and Lance Creek are tributaries to the Cheyenne and the Missouri Rivers 

which are navigable waters of the United States within the meaning of40 C.F.R. § 112.2 and 

Section 502(7) of the Act, 33 U.s.c. § 1362(7). 

11. Respondents are engaged in drilling, producing, gathering, storing, processing, 

refining, transferring, distributing, using or consuming "oil" as defined at Section 311 (a)(1) of 

the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 132 1 (a)(I) or o il products located at the faci li ties. 

12. The facili ties are Ilon-transportation-related facilit ies within the meaning of 40 C.F.R. 

§ 112.2 Appendix A, as incorporated by reference within 40 C.F.R. § 11 2.2. 

13. The facilities are onshore facilities within the meaning of Section 311 (a)( 1 0) of the 

Act, 33 U.S.c. § 1321(a)(10), and 40 C.F.R. § 112.2. 

14. The facilities are therefore non-transportation-related onshore faci li ties which, due to 

their location, could reasonably be expected to discharge oil to a navigable water of the United 

States or its adjoining shorelines in a harmful quantity (an SPCC-regulated facility) . 
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15. Pursuant to the Act, E.O. 12777, and 40 C.F.R. § 112.1 , Respondents, as the 

owner(s) and/or operator(s) oran SPeC-regulated facility, are subject to the spec regulations. 

16. Respondents and Respondents' predecessor began operating the facility prior to 

August 16, 2002. 

FAILURE TO ADEQUATELY PREPARE AND IMPLEMENT 
REQUIRED WRITTEN SPCC PLAN 

17. Paragraphs 3 through 16 above arc hereby incorporated by reference. 

18. 40 C.F.R. § 11 2.3 requires that the owner or operator of an SPeC-regulated onshore 

oil production facility must prepare a written spec plan in accordance with Part 11 2, including 

but not limited to, Sections 112.7, 11 2.9 and 112.10. 

19. On November 17, 2009, EPA inspectors, accompanied by Respondents' 

representative, David Weinert of Tetra Tech, inspected the Federa l 22-21 Facility. Bright 

Facility, and Beaver Hole Facility. 

20. During the inspection, EPA req uested copies of spec plans for the Federal 22·21 

Facility, Bright Facility , and Beaver I-Iole Fac il ity, but the ex ist ing spec plan could not be 

located or provided at that time.2 

2 1. At the time of the inspection, the Respondents failed to adequately prepare and 

implement a written spec plan for the Federal 22·21 Facility, Bright Facility, and Beaver Hole 

Facility, in accordance with 40 C. F.R. § 112.7 and other applicable sections of 40 C.F.R. Part 

112. 

2Jn April 2012, Respondents located the SPCC plans initially requested during the inspection. 
Those spec plans were unsigned and not dated. 
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22. A copy of the Notice of Inspection and a pre li minary list of potential violations for 

each of the facilities was provided to Respondents' representative at the close of the inspection, 

and Respondents' representative was infonned that Respondents should submit the spee plans 

for each of the facilities within thirty days. 

23. On January 27, 20 10, Jim Peterson, EPA, contacted Respondents and requested 

copies of the spec plans for the Federal 22·21 Facility, Bright Facility, and Beaver Hole Facility 

by February 8, 2010. 

24. On or about February 8, 2010, EPA received from Respondents, a consolidated spec 

plan dated February 5, 2010, for the Federal 22-21 Facility, Bright Facility, and Beaver Hole 

Facility. The consolidated spec plan included an additional facility known as the 32-20 

Injection Facility. 

25. Respondents failed to adequately prepare and implement a written spec plan for the 

Federal 22·2 1 Facility, the Bright Facility, the Beaver Hole Facility, and the 32-20 Injection 

Facility. 

26. In correspondence dated September 2, 2010, Melissa Payan, EPA, informed 

Respondents that spec deficiencies were identified during the November 17, 2009 inspection. 

27. In April 2011, EPA provided Respondents with a revised list of deficiencies based 

upon EPA's review of Respondents' February 2010 spec plan. See Attachment A to both the 

Initial Complaint and this Amended Complaint. 

28. From April 11 , 201 1, through and including the present, the parties have worked 

cooperatively to return the facilities into compliance with the CWA. 
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29. In the twenty-n ine (29) months since the inspection, Respondents have completed 

several of the SPCC plan and implementation deficiencies listed on Attachment A. 

30. Respondents have yet to complete the SPCC plan and implementation revisions listed 

in Attachment B to this Amended Complaint. 

31. Respondents failed to adequately prepare and implement a written spee plan for its 

facilities at the time of the inspection through the present day. 

32. Respondents' failure to adequately prepare and implement a written spec plan for 

the Federal 22-21 Facili ty, Bright Facili ty, Beaver Hole Facility and 32-20 Injection Facility in 

accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 112.7 and any other applicable section of 40 C.F.R. Part 112 

violated 40 C.F.R. § 112.3. 

33. On information and belief, Respondent continues 1O violate these requirements for 

each day, commencing on the date ofthc inspection fo r the Federal 22-21 Facility. Bright 

Facility, and Beaver Hole Facili ty, and commencing on or about February 8, 2010, for the 32-20 

Injection Facili ty, and continuing to the present day in vio lation of 40 C.F.R. § 112.3. 

34. On information and belief, Respondent has violated these requirements for the 

Federal 22-21 Facility, Bright Facility, and Beaver Hole Facility each day during the period from 

November 19,2009 to April 24, 2012, for a total of approximately 29 months, and violated these 

requirements for the 32-20 Injection Facility each day during the period from February 8, 2010 to 

April 24, 2012, for a total of approximate ly 26 months. 
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CIVIL PENALTY 

35. As a lleged in the preceding paragraphs, and pursuant to Section 

3 1 I (b)(6)(8 )(ii) of the Act and 40 C.F.R. § 19.4, Respondcnt is liable fo r civil penalties of up to 

$16,000 per day for each day during which the violation continues, up to a maximum of 

$\77,500. 

36. As alleged in the preceding paragraphs, and pursuant to Section 311 (b)(6)(8 )(ii) of 

the Act and 40 C.F.R. § 19.4, Respondent is li able for civil penalties of up to $16,000 per day for 

each day du ring which the vio lation continues, up to a maximum 0[ $ ]77,500. 

37. Based on the forgoing Allegations, and pursuant to the authority of Section 

31 I (b)(6)(8 )(ii) of the Act and 40 CFR § 19.4, the Complainant proposes that the Administrator, 

after consideri ng the statutory penalty factors set forth at Section 31 I (b)(8) of the Act , issue a 

Final Order assess ing administrat ive penalties against the Respondents in an amount not to 

exceed $ t 6,000 per day for each day during which the violation continues, up to a maximum of 

$\77,500. 

38. Complainant proposes this penalty amount after considering the app licable statutory 

penalty factors in section 3 1 I (b)(8) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. §132 1(b)(8) : the seriousness of the 

violation, the economic benefit to the violator, ifany, resul ting fTom the violation, the degree of 

culpability involved, any other penalty for the same incident , any hi story of prior violations, the 

nature, extent, and degree of success of any efforts of the violator to minimize or mitigate the 

e rrects of the di scharge. the economic impact of the penalty on the vio lator, and any other matters 

asjuslice may require. 
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39. Each violation alleged in the preceding Paragraphs for the four facilities represents a 

major violation due to the risk posed to the environment as a result of the fai lure to prepare and 

implement an adequate SPCC plan. Given the storage capacity at each of the facilities, the non

existence and/or inadequacy of secondary containment that existed at the time of inspection, the 

proximity to water, the initial failure of Respondents to be able to locate any SPCC plan for any 

of its facilities referenced above. the cumulati ve number of spec deficiencies in the 

consolidated plan submitted in February 2010, and the duration of the noncompliance, the 

Respondents' ability to prevent or respond to worst·case spi ll s through the development and 

implementation ofa plan is sign ificantly impaired. 

40. The duration of the alleged vio lations (29 months at three facilities and 26 months at 

one facility); the Respondents' knowledge of these specific spec regulations as documented by 

a similar action taken agai nst the Respondents in EPA's Region 7 office in 2002; the extensive 

I ist of deficiencies provided to Respondents at the close of EPA's inspection; and the 

conversations and meetings with EPA personnel since the EPA inspection demonstrate the 

Respondents' culpability and failure in promptly rectifying the violations. Addi tionally, 

Respondents have a history of violation within the past five years relative to violations of 

Wyoming Pollution Discharge Elimination System (WYPDES) permits (WY0030627, 

WY0032611 , WY0034428, and WY0034436) that document failure to sample and submit 

discharge monitoring reports (DMRs) and a significant violation of oil and grease limits. 

Additionally , as a result of the release of hydrogen sulfide, a deadly gas, the US Bureau of Land 

Management (BLM), has shut in at least one of Respondents' sour crude wells in Wyoming. 
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41. Lastly, the cost of compliance amounts to the preparation and implementation of an 

adequate consolidated SPCC plan, the construct ion of earthen benns or other secondary 

containment methods, and other actions necessary to address the remaining, outstanding 

deficiencies, estimated at between $4,000 and $10,000 total for all facilities. Thus, the economic 

benefit to the Respondent of noncompl iance is estimated at between $600 and $1,000 total for all 

facilities, depending on the choices Respondents make relative to installation of adequate 

secondary containment. 

OPPORTUNITY TO REOUEST A HEARI NG 

42. As provided in the Act, Respondents have the right to a public hearing to contest this 

First Amended Complaint. I f Respondents (1) contest the factual claims made in this First 

Amended Complaint; (2) contest the appropriateness of the proposed penalty; and/or (3) assert 

that it is entitled to judgment as a matter of law, it must file a written Answer in accordance with 

Sections 22.14(c), 22.15, and 22.38 of the Consolidated Rules with in twenty (20) calendar days 

after receipt of this First Amended Complaint. The Answer must (1) clearly and di rectly admit, 

deny, or explain each of the factual allegations contained in the First Amended Complaint with 

regard to which Respondents have knowledge; (2) state circumstances or arguments which are 

alleged to constitute grounds for defense; (3) state the facts Respondents dispute; (4) state the 

basis for opposing the proposed relief; and (5) specifically request an administrative hearing, if 

desired. Failure to admit, deny or explain any material factual allegation in this First Amended 

Complaint will constitute an admission of the allegation. The Answer and one copy must be sent 

to: Tina Anemis, Regionall-learing Clerk (SRC) 
U.S. EPA Region S 
1595 Wynkoop Street 
Denver, Colorado S0202-1129 

to 



and a copy must be scnt to the following attorney: 

Brenda L. Morris, Enforcement Attorney (8ENF-L) 
U.S. EPA Region 8, Legal Enforcement Program 
1595 Wynkoop Street 
Denver, CO 80202-1129 
Telephone: (303) 312-6891 

IF RESPONDENTS FAIL TO REQ UEST A H EARING, IT WI LL WAIVE 
ITS RI G HT TO FORMALLY CONTEST ANY O F T H E A LLEGATIONS 
SET FO RTH IN THE C OMPLAINT. 

IF RESPONDENTS FAIL TO FILE A WRITTEN ANSW ER OR I'AY THE 
PROI'OSED I'ENALTY WITHIN THE THIRTY (30) CALENDAR DAY 
TIM E LIMIT, A DEFA ULT JU DG M ENT MAY BE ENTERED 
PURSUANT TO 40 C.F.R. § 22.17. THIS JUDG MENT MA Y IMPOSE T H E 
PENALTY PRO I' OSED IN T H E COMPLAINT. 

TE RMS O F PAYM E NT FOR OUIC K RESOLUTION 

43. If the Respondents do not contest the fi ndings and penalty proposal set out above, 

this action may be resolvcd by paying thc proposed pcnalty in full pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.18. 

If slich payment is made within thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of this Complaint, no Answer 

need be riled. No later than thirty (30) days after thc effcctive date of the Final Order, the 

Respondents shall pay the amOllnt 01'$177,500 by means ofa cashier's or certified chcck, or by 

electronic funds transfer (EFT). 

a. The payment shall be made by remitting a cashicr's or ccrtiHed check, 

including the name and dockct number of the case, referencing "Oi l Spill Liability Trust Fund-

3 11 ," for the amount, payable to the: "Environmental Protection Agency," to: 

US checks by r egula r 
US post;lI service nutil : 

US Environmcntal Protection Agency 
Fines and Penalties 
Cincinnati Finance Center 
PO Box 979077 
St. Louis, MO 63197-9000 



Federal Express, Airborne, 
Or other commercial carrier: 

Wire transfers: 

On Line Payment: 

U.S. Bank 
1005 Convention Plaza 
Mail Station SL-MO-C2GL 
St. Louis, MO 63101 

Federal Reserve Bank of New York 
ABA = 021030004 
Account = 680 I 0727 
SWIFT address = FRNYUS33 
33 Liberty Street 
New York NY 10045 
Field Tag 4200 of the Fedwi re message should read 
"0 68010727 Environmental Protect ion Agency" 

WWW.PAY.GOV 
Enter sfo 1.1 in the search field 
Open foml and complete required tields. 

b. A copy of the check or wire transfer shall be simultaneously sent to: 

Cynthia Peterson (ENF-UFO) 
U.S. EPA Region 8 
1595 Wynkoop Street 
Denver, CO 80202-1 129 

c. Payment of the penalty in this manner does not relieve Respondents of their 

obligation to comply with the requirements of the statute and regulations. Payment of the penalty 

in this manner shall constitute consent by Respondents to the assessment of the proposed penalty 

and a waiver of Respondents' right to a hearing on this matter. 

PUBLIC NOTICE 

41. Pursuant to section 3 11 (b)(6)(C) of the Act, 33 U.S.c. § 1321 (b)(6)(C), the 

Complainant is providing public notice orand reasonable opportunity to comment on this 

proposed issuance of the first Amended Complaint assessing administrative penalties against 

you. I f a hearing is held on this matter, members of the public who submitted timely comments 
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on this proceeding have the right under section 31 1(b)(6)(C) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 

1321 (b)(6)(C), to be heard and present evidence at the hearing. 

SETTLEM ENT CONFERENCE 

42 . The EPA encourages settlement of a proceeding at any time if the settlement is 

consistent with the provisions and objectives of the Act and applicable regu lations and is willing 

to explore this possibility in an informal settlement conference. If yo u or your attorney, if you 

choose to be represented by one, have any questions or wish to have an infonnal settlement 

conference with EPA, please call Senior Enforcement Attorney Brenda Morris at (303) 312-

689 1. Please note that a request for, schedul ing of, or participation in a sett lement conference 

does not ex tend the period for fil ing an answer and request for hearing as set out above. The 

settlement process, however, may be pursued simultaneously with the administrative litigation 

procedures found in the Consolidated Rules. I r a settlement can be reached, its terms must be 

expressed in a written consent ag reement, signed by the parties and incorporated into a Ilnal 

order signed by the Regional Judicial Officer. 

Date:_---''-If-I_;;<_I-LI_1_.:l.. __ _ 
7 

Date:_L(,---/-,,--~-"-l_/-"-lv=--_ 

UNITE D STATES ENVIRONM ENTAL 
PROTECTION AGENCV, REG ION 8 
Complainant. 

Andrew M. Gaydosh 
Assistant Regional Administrator 
Ofl1cc of Enforcement, Compliance and 

Environmental Justice 

By:~8Jli~~-1JuW)~"",-
Brenda L. Morris, Attorney 
Legal Enforcement Program 
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ATTACHMENT A 

Asher Associates 
spec Plan for Bright and Beaver Hole Fields: Consolidated Plan for Beaver Hole Facility, 22-21 Facility, 
Bright Facility. 32-20 Injection Facility, and 44-5 Facility 

Inspections of Beaver Hole Facility, 22 -21 Facility. and Bright Facility conducted on Nov. 17, 2009 

Deficiency common to all facilities 

Deficiencies list 
9/20/11 

.. No spec plan at time of inspection in violation of 40 C.F.R. § 112.3. 

Plan deficiencies common to all plans 

• No records of training available in violation of 112.7{f). 

Cross reference is inaccurate in violation of 40 (.F.R § 112.7. 

.. Notification form is inadequate in violation of 40 C.F.R § 112.7{a}(4) The amount discharged to water 

and the media affected must be included. 

.. Discharge prediction is inadequate in violation of 40 CF.R § 112.7(bJ. Discussion of discharge 

sources, quantities and rates are generic and aren't specific to each source. 

• No discussion of general secondary containment for loading and unloading areas other than racks in 
violation of 40 CF.R § 112.7(c). 

Specific bulk containers for which impracticability is being claimed are not identified in violation of 
40 C.F.R § 112.7(d). 

o Discussion of integrity testing is inadequate in violation of 40 C.F.R § 112.7(d). Integrity 
tests should be specific for each container and/or pipe fo r which impracticability is being 
claimed. A generic list of potential integrity tests is not adequate. 

o Contingency plan is grossly inadequate in violation of 40 C. F.R § 112.7(d)(1). 

• Discussion of brittle fracture is inadequate in violation of 40 C F.R § 112.7(i). Field-erected tank, 

which is out of service, is not identified. No documentation of permanent closure is provided . 

Specific pipelines, for which secondary containment are not provided, are not identified in violation 

of 40 C.F .R § 112.9(dIl3). 
o Contingency plan is grossly inadequate in violation of 40 C.F.R § 112.9(d)(3J(i). 
o A flowline maintenance plan is not provided in violation of 40 C.F.R § 112.9(d)(4J. 

Documentation needed for all plans 

• Inadequate secondary containment was scheduled to be corrected on Sept. 30, 2010. 
Documentation must be provided showing adequate containment and date completed. 

• Records of any testing or inspections conducted over the last 12 months must be provided. 

• Records of any training conducted over the last 12 months must be provided. 



Site-Specific Deficiencies 

Beaver Hole Facility 

• Pla n Deficiencies 

o Failure to identify the capacity of all oil containers in violation of 40 C.F.R. § 112.9(a){3)(i). 
Technical Deficiencies 

o Inadequate secondary containment for bulk containers in violation of 40 C.F.R. § 112.9(c)(2). 
(As documented in plan and inspection.) 

o Inadequate secondary containment for heater treater in violation of 40 C.F.R. § 112.7(c)(2). 
(As documented in plan and inspection.) 

o Inadequate secondary containment for "out of service" tanks, for which no documentation 
of permanent closure under 40 C.F.R. § 112.2 is provided, in violation 40 C.F.R. § 112.9(c). 
(As documented in plan and inspection.) 

o Inadequate secondary containment for heat/treater used for storage, in violation 40 C.F .R. § 
112.9(c). (As documented in plan and inspection.) 

o No records of test and inspections available in violation of I12.7(e). (As documented in 
inspection.) 

22-21 Fac ility 

Plan Deficiencies 
o Inadequate facility diagram in violation of 40 C.F.R. § 112.7(a)(3). Not aU piping shown on 

diagram. 
o Failure to identify the capacity of all oil containers in violation of 40 C.F.R. § 112.9(a)(3)(i). 

• Technical Deficiencies 
o Secondary containment inadequate for single largest tank (SOO bbl) in violation of 40 C.F.R. § 

112.9(c). (AS documented in plan and inspection.) 
o Inadequate secondary containment for HT /Knockout Tank in violation of 40 C.F.R. § 

112.7(c)(2). (As documented in plan and inspection.) 
o No secondary containment for 400 bbl and 500 bbl Skim Tanks in violation of 40 C.F.R. § 

112.9(c)(2). 
o No records of test and inspections available in violation of 112.7(e). (As documented in 

inspection.) 
o Tanks show evidence of rust and need for maintenance in violation of 40 C.F.R. § 

112.9(c)(3). (As documented in inspection.) 
o Leaking valve in violat ion of 40 C.F.R. § 112.9(c)(3). (AS documented in inspection .) 

Bright Faci lity 
Plan Deficiencies 

o Failure to identify the capacity of all oil containers in violation of 40 C.F.R. § 112.9(a){3){i). 

• Technical Deficiencies 
o No records of test and inspections available in violation of I12.7(e). (As documented in 

inspection.) 
o Inadequate secondary containment for "out of service" tanks, for which no documentation 

of permanent closure under 40 C.F.R. § 112.2 is provided, in violation 40 C.F.R. § 112.9(c). 
(As documented in plan and inspection.) 

o Inadequate containment capacity for 31-8/44·5 Tank Farm in violation of 40 C.F.R. § 
112.9(c)(2). (AS documented in plan.) 



o Inadequate containment capacity for 41-8 produced water tank in violation of 40 C.F.R. § 
112.9(c)(2). (As documented in plan.) 

o NO secondary containment for vesse ls in building in violation of 40 C.F.R. § 112.9(c)(2). (As 
documented in plan.) 

32-20 Injection Facility 
• Plan Deficiencies 

o Failure to identify the capacity of all oil containers in violation of 40 C.F.R. § 112.9(a)(3)(i). 
• Technical Deficiencies 

o Inadeq uate secondary co ntainment for produced water tank farm in violation of 40 C.F .R. § 
112.9{c)(2). (As documented in plan.) 

o Inadequate genera l containment in violation of 40 C.F.R. § 112.7(c). Compressor and triplex 
pump are not addressed. (As documented in plan.) 



Asher Associates 
Uncorrected Deficiencies list 

ATTACHMENT B 

Revised April 23, 2012, based on April 17, 2012 submittals 

Deficiencies common to all facilities 

• NO documentation of training in violation of 40 C.F.R. § 112.7{f). 

Plan deficiencies common to all plans 

• 
• 

• 

• 

• 

Management approval not signed in violation of 40 C.F.R. § 112.7. 

Cross reference is inaccurate in violation of 40 C.F.R § 112.7. Page numbers are incorrect. Information 

regarding "Qualified Oil-Fil led Equipment" is included in cross reference, which appears to be an error since 
there is no evidence of qualified oil-fi lled equipment at any of the facilities. 

Inadequate discussion of general secondary containment for loading and unloading areas other than racks in 
violation of 40 C.F.R § l12.7(c). Plan identifies spill response equipment as providing secondary 

conta inment for loading/unloading areas. However, there is no discussion of the adequacy of the spill 
response equ ipment in providing general secondary containment. The contents of spill kits, the availabi l ity 
of personnel and/or equipment to implement active secondary containment measures, etc ., should be 
defined so as to document adequacy of secondary containment. 

Specific bulk containers for which impracticability is being claimed are not identified in violation of 40 C. F.R § 
112.7(d). The Site Specific Spill Planning, Countermeasures and Contra/In/ormation for the Bright - Tank 
Farm East - Satellite states, "Storage containers for which secondary containment is not practicable are 
discussed in Section 2.1." Impracticability for tanks at this site does not appear to be discussed in Section 
2.1 or elsewhere in the plan. In addition, this sentence appears to contradict other statements in the plan 

regarding practicabil ity of secondary containment. Clarification is needed regard ing w hether secondary 
containment is impracticable for storage containers for at this site. 

Although, the revised SPCC plan adequately addressed 40 C.F.R. § 112.9(d)(3) in Section 4.6, at the time it 
was written, the plan now needs to meet the requirements 40 C.F.R. § 112.9(d)(4) for flowline/intra-facility 

gathering line maintenance, which became effect ive November 10, 2011. 

Documentation needed for all plans 

• Plan amendments must be documented in Section 2.6.2 of the SPCC Plan. Technica l Amendments must be 
certified by a professional engineer. 

• According to the Site SPCC Deficiencies and Schedule of Compliance provided to EPA on April 17, 2012, 
secondary containment is inadequate at the 22-21 facility. Documentation must be provided showing 
adequate secondary containment and the date completed. Such proof typically includes, but is not limited 

to: 
o Secondary Containment 

A signed statement and/or invoice from the contractor who const ructed/repaired secondary 

conta inment at the faci lities documenting the dimensions and height of the secondary 
conta inment as well as compaction methods used to ensure secondary containment is 
sufficiently impervious to contain a spill; 

• Photo documentation that shows the construct ion/repair of secondary containment, the 
dimensions and height of the secondary conta inment , and compact ion ensuring secondary 
containment is suffi ciently impervious to contain a spil l; 

• Invoices documenting the purchase of spill response materials referenced in the plan to 
address genera l secondary containment requirements for loading and un loading areas. 



• 

• 

• 

• 

Documentation must be provided showing permanent closure of tanks and the date completed. Such proof 
typically includes, but is not limited to: 

o Permanent Closure of Tanks 

Invoices from contractors that cleaned out the tanks (i.e. removed residual oil/sludge at 
bottom of the tank); 

• Invoices or other documentation for disposal of residual oil/sludge removed from tanks; 
• Photos showing all connecting lines and pipes have been disconnected and blanked off, and 

all valves (except ventilation valve) have been closed and locked; AND 
Photos showing signs on tanks labeling them as permanent ly dosed and not ing the date of 
closu re . 

The spec Plans dated February 5, 2010, and September 15, 2011, require semi -annual inspections. Records 
of a ny testing or inspections conducted over the last 12 months must ,be provided. 

The SPCC Plans dated February 5, 2010, and September 15, 2011, require annual training of personnel. 
Documentation of any training conducted over the last 12 months must be provided. 

Diagrams must be updated w here secondary containment, other than height, has been changed. The SPCC 
Deficiencies and Schedule of Compliance provided to EPA on April 17, 2012, does not update the diagram 
for the Bright Facility berms, nor does it include a co rrected Field Inspection Documentation and Secondary 
Containment Ca lcula t ions form for the Bright 41-8 Battery. 

Site-specific deficiencies 

Beaver Hole Facility 

• Technical Deficiencies 
o Inadequate secondary containment for "out of service" tanks, for which no documentation of 

permanent closure under 40 C.F.R. § 112.2 is provided, in vio lation 40 C.F.R. § 112.9{c). (As 
documented in plan and inspection.) Neither secondary containment nor documentation of 
permanent closure is discussed for the 215 SSL Steel Horizontal Tank (OOS). 

a No records of tests and inspections available in violation of 40 C.F.R. § 112.7(e). (As documented in 
inspection.) 

22-21 Facility 

• Technical Deficiencies 
a Secondary containment inadequate for single largest tank (500 bbl) in vio lation of 40 C.F.R. § 

112.9(c). (As documented in plan and inspection.) Dimensions provided document inadequate 
secondary containment. 

a No secondary containment fo r "out of service" tanks, for which no documentation of permanent 
closure under 40 C.F.R. § 112.2 is provided, in violation 40 C.F.R. § 112.9{c) . (As documented in plan 
and inspection.) Neither secondary containment nor documentation of permanent closure is 
provided for the 500 barrel produced water tank. 

a No records of tests and inspect ions available in violation of 40 C.F.R. § 112.7(e). (As documented in 
inspection.) 

Bright Facility 

• Technical Deficiencies 
o No records of tests and inspections ava ilable in violation of 40 C.F.R. § 112.7(e). (As documented in 

inspection.) 
a The SPCC Deficiencies and Schedule of Compliance provided to EPA on April 17, 2012, does not 

update the diagram for the Bright Facility berms' dimensions, nor does it include a corrected Field 
Inspection Documentation and Secondary Containment Calculations form for the Bright 41-8 Battery 
in violation of 40 C.F.R. § 112.7(a){3), 



32-20 Injection Faci lity 

• Technical Deficiencies 

o Inadequate general containment in violation of 40 C.F.R. § 112.7(c). Compressor and triplex pump 
• are not addressed. (As documented in plan.) 

Clarifica t ion needed 

Although not a violation, the frequency of scheduled inspections should be clarified in the plan. Section 5.1.1 
discusses semi-annual inspections, while the referenced "Facility Inspection Form" in Appendix E includes the 
word "Annual" in the title. Annua l inspections are also referenced in Section 4.6. Please clarify the apparent 
discrepancies. Will you be conducting semi-annual and annual inspections, and will you be using the same 
inspection form for both? 



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

The undersigned hereby cert ifies that the original and one copy of the FIRST AMENDED 
COMPLAfNT AND NOTICE OF OPPORTUNITY FOR HEARlNG was hand-carried to the 
Regional Hearing Clerk, EPA Region 8,1595 Wynkoop Street, Denver, Colorado, and that a true 
copy of the same was sent via certified mail to: 

Date 

Law Office of Paul zogg 
1221 Pearl Street 
Boulder, CO 80302 
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§21.13 

approve or disapprove the State issued 
statement. in accorda.nce with the re
quirements of § 21.5. . 

(2) The Regional Administrator will 
periodically review State program per
formance. In the event of State pro
gram deficiencies the Regional Admin
istrator will notify the State of such 
defioiencies. 

(3) During that period tha.t any · 
State's program is classified as deft- · 
clent. statements issued by a State 
shall a lso be sent to the Regional Ad
ministrator for review. The Regional 
Administrator shall notify the State. 
the applicant, and the SBA of any de-

. termination subsequently made, in ac
cordance with §21.5, on any such state
ment. 

(1) If within 60 days after notice of 
such deficiencies has been provided, 
the State has not taken corrective ef
forts . and if the deficiencies signifi
cantly affect the conduct of the pro
gram, the Regio:q.al Administrator, 
after sufficient notice has been pro
vided to the Regional Director of SBA, 
shall withdraw the approval of the 
State program. 

(11) Any State whose program is with
drawn and whose deficiencies have been 
corrected may later reapply as pro
vided in §21.12(a). 

(g) Funds a.ppropriated under section 
106 of the Act may be ut1l1zed by a 
State agency authorized to receive 
such funds in conducting this program. 

§ 21.13 Effect of certification upon au-
thority to e nforce applicable stand
ards. 

The certification by EPA or a State 
for SEA Loan purposes in no way con
stitutes a determination by EPA or the 
State that tbe facilities certified (a) 
w1ll be constructed within tbe time 
specified by an applicable standard or 
(b) will be constructed and installed in 
accordance witb tbe plans and speci
fications submitted in the application, 
will be operated and maintained prop
erly, or wtll be applied to process 
wastes which are tbe same as described 
in the application. The certification in 
no way constitutes a waiver by EPA or 
a State of its authority to take appro
priate enforcement action against the 
owner or operator of auch facilities for 
violations of an applicable standard: 

I~ff-o CJJ-;r 
40 CFR Ch. I (7-1-08 Edition) 

PART 22-CONSOLIDATED RULES 
OF PRACTICE GOVERNING THE 
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSESSMENT OF 
CIVIL PENALTIES AND THE REV
OCATION/TERMINATION OR SUS
PENSION OF PERMITS 

Subpart A-{;eneral 

Sec. 
22.1 Soope of th1s part. 
22.2 Use of number and gender. 
22.S Defin1tlons. 
22.4 Powers and duties of the Environ

mental Appeals Board, Regional Judicial 
Officer and Presiding Officer; disquali
fication, withdrawal, and reassignment . 

22.5 F1l1ng, service, and form of all flIed 
documents; business confidentiality 
claims. 

22.6 F1l1ng and service of rulings, orders and 
decisions. 

22.7 Computation a.nd extenSion of time. 
22.8 Ex parte discussion of proceeding. 
22.9 Examination of documents filed. 

Subpart B-Partles and Appearances 

22.10 Appearancee. · 
22.11 Intervention and non-party briefs. 
22.12 Consolidation and severa.nce. 

Subpart C-Prehearing Procedures 

22.13 Commencement of a proceeding. 
22.14 Complaint. 
22.15 Answer to the complaint. 
22.16 Motions. 
22.17 Default. 
22.18 Quick resolution; settlement; . alter

native dispute resolution. 
22.19 Prehear1ng information exchange; pre

hearing conference; other discovery. 
22.20 Accelerated decision; 'decision to dis

miss. 

. Subpart D--Hearing Procedures 

22.21 Assignment of Presiding Officer; 
scheduling the heartng. 

22.22 . EvIdence. 
22.23 Objections and offers of proof. 
22.24 Burden of presentation; burden of per· 

suasion; preponderance of the evidence 
standard. 

22.25 F111ng the transcript. 
22.28 Proposed findings, conoluslons, and 

order. 

Subpart E-Inttfal Decision and Motion to 
Reopen a Hearing 

· 22."27 Initial decision. 
22.28 Motion to reopen a hearing. 
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